COSTS OF DEVELOPMENT
For the last two months we have been looking at the developments which George Burnett made to part of his estate during the middle of the 18th century, on what was known at that time as 'Farm of Kemnay'.  Many different skills were required, people to trench the ground, ability to blast the larger stones, folk to build dry stone dykes, others to plant and nurture trees and so on. Who the 'high heid yin' in this project was, has yet to be ascertained.  It is clear from the records in Kemnay House that George Burnett surrounded himself with knowledgeable and able people for the time.
A scrap of paper dated 25th September 1756 narrates 'Eighteen foot blasted by James MCPetrie of James Grubbs boring'.  This refers to the blasting of stones while clearing of the ground during developments. The document was signed by 'Alexander Thomson' whose identity we do not know.
James McPetrie in Craigearn was granted a lease by George Burnett on 21st April 1757 'of that fold of Lochshangie lying westward of the fold possessed by William Scott as also one fourth part of the burntland lying south of the moss of Kemnay and west of the Miltons Briggs except what is marked out for the new road from Kemnay for 19 years from Whitsun 1757: [rental was to be 41 pounds 10 shillings Scots yearly in two halves along with other burdens conditional that he did not sell or give away peats and firr from the moss of Lochshangie.]  The deed was written by William Taylor, servant to George Burnett and witnessed by him and James Machray, also servant to George Burnett.
There is no doubt that from the description given, the ground about to be leased was readily identifiable, but to us, some 260 years later, some of the descriptions are quite meaningless. One point noted is that the 'new road from Kemnay' had yet to be constructed; another, that fuel was jealously guarded.  George Burnett had at least two well educated servants (judging by their handwriting) in William Taylor and James Machray, both of whom were in his service for a number of years – William Taylor was the local schoolmaster. 

What became of James McPetrie we do not know, but his lease was granted to William Bothwel in Fullerton in the parish of Kintore for three years from 5th April 1764 at a rental of 27 pounds Scots besides the other obligations to be paid in kind.

Other names crop up in the records with whom one forms a kind of affinity, but there are many more who have disappeared into the mists of anonymity.
